
TCD Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting (Rescheduled) & Work Session Agenda 
February 12th, 2019 (2:00pm - 5:00pm) 
Work Session begins at 1:00pm 
2918 Ferguson St SW, Suite A, Tumwater, WA 98512, 360.754.3588 

No. Item 
Work Session: 1:00pm- 2:00pm 
1. Review February Board Meeting Materials, All 

A. 2019 Budget Development 

Time Allotted Tab# 

60 minutes 

Plan 

A/S: 88 

Work Session Time Allotment: 60 minutes (1 hr) 

Monthly Meeting: 2:00(2m - 5:0012m 
1. Welcome, Introductions, Audio Recording Announcement 2:00 PM 

and Pledge of Allegiance 5 minutes 

2. Agenda Review 2:05 PM 
10 minutes 

3. Board Meeting Minutes Review, All- Action Item 2:15 PM 1 A/S: 92 
A. June 26th, 2018 Regular Meeting minutes 75 minutes 
B. July 24th, 2018 Special Meeting minutes 
C. October 30th, 2018 Regular Meeting & Work Session minutes 
D. November 15th, 2018 Regular Meeting & Work Session minutes 
E. January 15th, 2019 Regular Meeting & Work Session minutes 
F. Review of new minutes template and policy, Ben Cushman 
G. Status of past board Meeting minute signatures, Eric Johnson 

4. 2019 Elections 3:30 PM 2 
A. District Elections Timeline and Information, Sarah Moorehead 30 minutes 
B. Recind TCD Resolution #2019-01: 2019 District 

Elections, All - Action Item 
C.TCD Resolution #2019-02: 2019 District Elections 

Updated, All - Action Item 
D. lnterlocal Agreement for 2019 Election with 

Thurston County Auditor's Office, All - Action Item 

5. Financial Report, All 4:00 PM 3 A/S: 92 
A. Monthly Financial Report 20 minutes 
B. January Check Register - Action Item 
C. Third Party Audit Update 

6. Post Executive Director Job Description, All 4:20 PM 4 
20 minutes 

7. Public Comment 4:40 PM 
20 minutes 

Adjourn, All 5:00 PM 



Meeting Time Allotment: 180 minutes (3 hrs) 

Total Time Allotment: 240 minutes (4 hrs) 
Key: GAP (Governance Action Plan), A/S (Annual & Strategic Plans) 

Information Only: Interim Executive Director's Report 5 





1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
G 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

Jl'i� 
� 

Conservation 
::EDistrict "iw 

,,. . " ·-- � �,. ,- 0 
lj> ( l-· e, • <1 Lustol\c 

Present at Meeting: 
Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair 
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor 
Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor 
Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair 
Alison Halpern, WSCC 
T J Johnson, Public 
Martin McCallum, Public 
Esther Kronenberg, Public 
Dan Calvert, PSP 

Board of Supervisors 
Monthly Board Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 26, 2018 (2:00pm) 

Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director 
Heather Roskelley, TCD Staff 
Chris Stearns, TCD Associate Board Supervisor 
Shana Joy, WSCC 
Joe Hanna, TCAAC 
Madeline Bishop, Public 
Vickie Larkin, Thurston BoCC 
Gary Edwards, Thurston BoCC 

2. Public Comment (3 minutes per person) 
• Persons who provided public comment: 

o TJ Johnson 
o Joe Hanna 

1. Welcome, Introductions, Audio Recording Announcement and Pledge of Allegiance 
• Eric Johnson called the meeting to order at 2:09pm. There was a quorum. 
• Welcome, Introductions, & Pledge of Allegiance conducted 
• Chair announced meeting is audio recorded 

Action Items: 
1. Staff to submit June 19 Subcommittee meeting notes as minutes 
2. Staff to send RFP lo employment law firms and solicit proposals; Sarah will also provide courtesy 

copy to Enduris and invite commentary 
3. Board Chair to review and sign minutes provided at meeting so they can be published on website in 

compliance with Action Plan 
4. Staff to send out Doodle poll to change Board meeting date in August because of conflict with 

USFWS meeting in Boise {August 28) 
5. Staff to ask for public meeting guidance for Supervisors from Attorney General's office 
6. Staff to put DOH Grant on July 31 agenda for discussion and provide two hard copies for 

Supervisors 
7. Staff will email quarterly payroll and staff reports to Board 
8. Staff to send Doodle poll to Supervisors to schedule Work Session-mid-July sometime between 3- 

6pm or 5-8pm 
9. Staff to provide revised mid-year budget with additional information to Supervisors 
10. Richard will contact HR temp agencies to hire a temp and will provide recommendations to Board 

during Work Session in mid-July 
11. Staff to provide entire contract for WRIA 13 Lead Entity as hard copies for approval during July 31 

Board meeting 
12. Staff will provide Chehalis Outreach meeting announcements 
13. Travel Policy to be discussed by Board in July Work Session 
14. Linda will attend a staff meeting (date TBD) to co-create Code of Conduct with staff 
15. Staff to put policy updates in books 



• 

.. 
• 

• 

• 
Include Supervisor Reports in Partner Reports - 60 
Include quarterly payroll and staff reports in Financial Report - 8E 
Paul made a motion to move the Executive Session Statement earlier in tile meeting. No 
second. 

" VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum (8) and CREP Assignment of Payment Forms (C) 
under Conservation Projects are tabled to July 31 Board meeting 

• Add Chehalis Outreach Grant Work Addendum to Conservation Projects as � 11 D 
Discuss potential OPMA violations � 98 
Discuss HR/legal services as it relates to budget - 1 OB 
Move #15 Protocol for Supervisor Requests to 13B • 

3. Agenda Review, All 

4. Board Officer Elections, All 
Table until July 31 Board Meeting 

5. HR/Legal, Sarah Moorehead 
A. HR/Legal Subcommittee Report 

• At subcommittee meeting, there was discussion about whether to move forward with 
attorney first 

• Sarah provided the names of two additional employment law firms in the Olympia area; 
they provide free initial consultation 

• Pierce CD has an interest and the capacity lo provide some HR support after legal 
issues are resolved 

• Need to have budget dlscussion to decide whether we can afford legal or HR services 
B. Legal Services RFP 

• Paul moved to use Richard's version of RFP and solicit proposals from employment law 
firms. Linda seconded. Unanimous approval with the following amendments: 

o Line 5: Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors (BoS) 
o Lines 11 & 18: Mailed, hand-delivered or emailed to: Board Chair and Acting 

Executive Director 
o Page 3, Scope of Services, Description a, Line 77: Act as general legal counsel 

to the TCD's Board of Supervisors 
Al - Staff to submit June 19 Subcommittee meeting notes as minutes 
Al - Sarah to send RFP to employment law firms and solicit proposals; Sarah will also 
provide courtesy copy to Enduris and invite commentary 

6. Partner Reports 
A. NRCS - No Report 
B. WSCC, Shana Joy 
• Introduced new Puget Sound Regional Manager, Alison Halpern 
• WSCC meeting July 18 and 19 in Shelton at Little Creek Casino and Resort; Mason CD tour 
• WSCC has concluded their investigation of TCD; drafting final report; report should be available soon 
• Livestock technical assistance - WSCC is asking more questions of each CD so they can track 

funding 
• Thurston CD will be audited this year - to be reimbursed through grant money; each district is 

audited every three years 
• Legal requirements for TCD - still have 4 different elements not in compliance with 

Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP - handout): open public 
meetings act; keeping public informed through minutes; adherence to labor laws; unresolved 
Human Rights Commission complaints 

• Shana will be reporting CDs in red (TCD) to the Commission and they make decision; there Is a 
new CAPP program so she is not sure what they will do 

2 

54 
55 
56 
57 
58 
59 
60 
61 
62 
63 
64 
65 
66 
67 
68 
69 
70 
71 
72 
73 
74 
75 
76 
77 
78 
79 
80 
81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
87 
88 
89 
90 
91 
92 
93 
94 
95 
96 
97 
98 
99 

100 
101 
102 
103 
104 
105 
106 



l 07 • It is up to TCD to provide evidence that they have complied by July 18 
108 • Shana mentioned that it's OK to not post minutes for a couple of months, but not beyond two 
109 months 
110 c. WACD/NACD - Doug Rushton was not able to attend June 26 Board meeting but provided 
111 handouts that were included in Board Packet 
112 D. Supervisor Meetings 
113 • Eric and Richard have attended US Fish and Wildlife Service meetings; they would like to attend 
114 a meeting in Boise on August 28 that addresses how landowners are handling easements; other 
J 15 issues are problems with endangered species and making the building permit process easier 
116 • Meetings with Partners in Conservation 
117 Al - Board Chair to review and sign minutes provided at meeting so they can be published 
118 on website in compliance with Action Plan 
119 Al - Sarah to send out Doodle poll to change Board meeting date in August because of 
120 conflict with USFWS meeting in Boise (August 28) 
121 
122 Letter from Eric Johnson and his attorney read by Richard Mankamyer 
123 11 Letter states that closed door sessions are legal to discuss employees including Acting 
124 Executive Director; final action may be taken in public meeting 
125 Al - Staff to ask for public meeting guidance for Supervisors from Attorney General's office 
126 
127 Handout - Statement of Paul Pickett 
128 • Re: sending emails for discussion to other Board Supervisors 
129 • In thefuture, it is recommended that all Supervisors use bee (blind copy) when 
130 communicating by email so that they can't all reply and create a discussion 
131 • In addition, Shana advised not putting anything in email that's to do with Executive Session 
132 
133 Handout - Statement of Paul Pickett and Doug Rushton 
134 · • Because of potential legal liability regarding the June ylh Special Meeting Executive Session, 
135 Paul Pickett and Doug Rushton issued a statement 
136 
137 7. Board Meeting Minutes Review, All 
138 A. April 24, 2018 Regular Meeting & Work Session minutes 
139 Linda moved to approve minutes as amended in work session. Richard seconded. Eric, 
140 Richard, and Linda approved. Paul abstained. Motion passed. 
141 B. May 29, 2018 Regular Meeting & Work Session minutes 
142 Paul moved to approve minutes as amended in work session. Linda seconded. Unanimous 
143 approval. 
144 C. June T, 2018 Special Meeting & Work Session minutes 
145 Paul distributed minutes through Sarah with his edits. 
l 46 o Edits 64�69 - OK 
147 o Remove 70 
148 o Edits 80-82 - OK 
149 o Take out D 
150 
151 0. February 27, 2018 Regular Meeting minutes 
152 Linda moved to approve as amended. Richard seconded. Eric, Richard, and Linda approved. 
153 Paul abstained. Motion passed. 
154 • Lines 79-81 - put on agenda for July 31 Board meeting 
155 
156 8. Financial Report 
157 A. Monthly Financial Report 
158 • If Richard would Hke different information provided, Sarah will implement 
159 • Staff birth dates to be removed from Regence invoice/statement 

3 



160 B. May Check Register 
161 • Paul moved to approve checks 19602-19642 totaling $104, 171.78 with voided checks 
162 19604, 19626, 19638. Linda seconded. Unanimous approval. 
163 
164 Break at 3:54pm. Meeting resumed at 4:07pm. 
165 
166 C. DOH Grant 
167 • Ready for signature; Sarah emailed it to Supervisors during previous week (54 pages) 
168 • $300,000 total 
169 • Approved in 2018 annual budget; through March 31, 2020 
170 • Provides for technical assistance - working with school and urban gardens, farm tours, 
171 beginning farming training programs, riparian programs 
172 - Two hard copies requested for Supervisors 
173 Al - Staff to put DOH Grant on July 31 agenda for discussion and provide two hard 
174 copies for Supervisors 
175 
176 D. Quarterly Payroll and Staff Reports 
177 Al - Sarah will email quarterly payroll and staff reports to Board 
178 
179 Linda moved to have Work Session scheduled mid-month to handle routine items and place 
180 them on consent calendar. Paul seconded. Unanimous approval. 
181 
182 Al - Staff to send Doodle poll to Supervisors to schedule Work Session mid-July 
183 sometime between 3-6pm or 5-8pm 
184 
185 9. Executive Session Statement 
186 A. Paul Pickett read statement earlier (refer to 60} 
187 B. Potential OPMA violations · 
188 It was decided that emails sent by Paul and Doug were not in violation as they were not reply 
189 all; as mentioned earlier in this meeting, it is best to blind copy other Board Supervisors or send 
190 to Sarah and she will distribute 
191 
192 10. Mid-Year Budget Revision. All 
193 A, Budget and 2018 Mid-Year Staffing Needs 
194 • Supervisors concluded they need more information to make budget decisions 
195 111 TCD can subcontract out to Pierce, King, Mason and other districts; However, 
196 permanent staff are needed to fulfill grant commitments; TCD needs to retain staff 
197 • Union labor negotiator will be contacting Board through Sarah 
198 B. HR/Legal Services · 
199 • Richard will provide recommendations to Board mid-July during Work Session 
200 • Shana Joy noted that TCD policy states the hiring is done by the permanent or acting 
201 executive director; not Board Supervisors. TCO needs to know if there is budget to hire 
202 HR and/or legal services. 
203 • Paul stated that the Board did not know where the money was to fund the position; he 
204 would like to see a better budget first to ensure that the Board is doing this the right way 
205 and not the wrong way 
206 111 Sarah shared concerns about operating against TCD policy and the Board authorizing 
207 expenses of unknown amounts. She recommended first ensuring there is sufficient 
208 funding available and second following the District's policy on hiring staff. 
209 • Eric stated the HR position would not be supervised by Sarah and it was authorized by 
21 O the Board to contract an HR position 

4 



211 • Eric moved to authorize Board Auditor to contract with a qualified HR person through a 
212 temp agency who reports back to the Auditor and the Board. Linda seconded. Eric, 
213 Linda, Richard approved. Paul objected. Motion Passed. 
214 
215 Al - Staff to provide revised mid-year budget with additional information to Supervisors 
216 Al - Richard will contact HR temp agencies to hire a temp and will provide 
217 recommendations to Board in Work Session mid-July 
218 
219 11. Conservation Projects, All 
220 A. WRIA 13 Lead Entity Contract Renewal 
221 • This is the next contract with RCO ta continue TCD's commitment to operate as the fiscal 
222 agent for the WRIA 13 Lead Entity 
223 • Staff recommendation is to approve this second half biennium contract with RCO (July 1, 
224 2018-June 30, 2019) and authorize the TCD Board Chair or Interim Executive Director to 
225 sign the final contract document upon receipt 
226 • Billable time starts July 1 
227 " Final contract not yet available 
228 • Shana advised Board to vote to approve at July 31 Board meeting and backdate it to July 
229 1 
230 • Board would like entire contract (as hard copies) to be provided for approval 
231 • Board Chair stated that there is to be no monetary expenditure by staff until contract is 
232 signed 
233 B. VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum "Tabled 
234 c. CREP Assignment of Payment Forms - Tabled 
235 D. ChehaJis Outreach Grant Addendum 
236 • Staff working on this: Sarah, habitat team, education and outreach staff 
237 • Chehalis Basin Strategy work - Skookumchuk - interested in working lands easements; 
238 flood mitigation, aquatic species restoration work; making sure that landowners have a 
239 seat at the table; Kathleen Berger has been a big advocate for landowners 
240 • Paul moved to approve Chehalis Outreach Grant addendum. Linda seconded. 
241 Unanimous approval. 
242 Al - Staff to provide entire contract for WRIA 13 Lead Entity as hard copies for approval 
243 during July 31 Board meeting 
244 Al - Stop work on WRIA 13 Lead Entity contract effective July 1 until contract is signed 
245 Al - Staff will provide Chehalis Outreach meeting announcements 
246 
247 12. Rates & Charges, Sarah Moorehead 
248 Preparation for Board of County Commissioner's Briefing 
249 • Meeting on June 27 9:30am-1 Oam; second meeting scheduled for J.uly 18 2:30pm-3pm in 
250 case more time is needed 
251 • County' has been supportive; all individuals who spoke at May 10 Public Hearing were 
252 supportive 
253 
254 13. Review of TCD Governance Action Plan and Protocol for Supervisor Requests, All 
255 A. Action Plan Discussion 
256 • Action Plan items - some have been accomplished and noted 
257 • Travel Policy has not been approved 
258 • Code of Conduct needs to be created; Enduris' Code of Conduct sent by Shana in January 
259 2018 for reference; decided that one Board member, Linda, will attend a staff meeting to 
260 co-create Code of Conduct with staff 
261 B. Protocol for Supervisor Requests 

5 



262 • Between meetings there are requests; Interim Executive Director can either 1) provide 
263 answer fairly quickly, 2) set a time frame for deliverable, or 3) defer to discussion in 
264 meeting because request requires extensive time commitment 
265 • Sarah gets conflicting direction from Supervisors; need a broader discussion on priorities 
266 - how best to prioritize from a collective Board with one voice 
267 Al - Travel Policy to be discussed by Board in July Work Session 
268 Al - Linda will attend a staff meeting (date TBD) to co-create Code of Conduct with staff 
269 
270 14. Review of Policies & Procedures 
271 Al - Staff to put policy updates in books 
272 
273 15. Adjourn, All 

274 Paul moved to adjourn. Linda seconded at 6:33pm. Unanimous approval. 
275 
276 Respectfully Submitted, 
277 
278 
279 
280 Eric Johnson, Board Chair 

6 



\ 

Statement of Paul J. Pickett 
Supervisor, Thurston Conservation District 

Several email exchanges that involved me are mentioned in the statement regarding Executive Sessions. I am providing 
for the record a copy of the entire email threads and attachments. 

The first set of exchanges began on May 31, when Supervisor Richard Mankamver sent an email to Acting Executive 
Director Moorehead and copied me, and presumably the other supervisors, by blind CC. l responded by email on June 
241\ offering "feedback", and noted that I had asked for time at the next board meeting to discuss the matter. 

Supervisor Mankamyer responded that this email by stating "you just held and Illegal TCD Board of Supervisor meeting", 
suggesting that n: might constitute a violation of the Open Public Meetings Act M!'! ,�c)t1tit1ued: "you are welcome to seek 
legal advise on this if you feel this is in error." 

I believe that my email was not a violation, because it was informational only, and that l specifically suggested that the 
Board discuss the matter in open session. Nevertheless, I understand that one might construe it as soliciting a policy 
discussion prior to full public discussion, which might b{, a violation. In any case, as I stated at the outset, I now put the 
entire email string on tho record to cure any real or perceived violation. 

A second incident occurred on June 41\ when Supervisor Mankamyer sent a draft "Letter of Direction" to Supervisor Eric 
Johnson, with a blind cc to me. l presume other Board members received the blind cc. 

I responded with an email on June 4.U', cc'd to the entirP. Board, where I stated: "I'll try to send a draft for you 
consideration before the meeting, or at least I'll share my ideas then," l then sent a draft document regarding 
expectations for the Acting Executive Director position to the Board on June 6111• In that email, ( stated "attached are 
some Ideas for our discussion tomorrow." 

Supervisor Mankarnyer again responded with the exact same wording as in the previous message, accusing me of 
holding an Illegal meeting and suggesting I seek legal counsel. 

Again, my email was inforrnational and intended for a Boord discussion in an open meeting. But to provide transparency 
for my communications and cure any real or perceived violation, 1 um also providing thls email thread and my draft 
document for the record. 

I have reviewed the rules regarding communication by email outside of public meetings and completed the training for 
new Supervisors. I will ensure that any omatl communication will be marked dearly "for mfurmanon only" ill the future, 
and avoid any discussion of Issues by email outside of a public meeting. 

Signed 

Paul Pickett, Supervisor 



Washington State Conservation Network Mail· MOU with WSO Bner ... https :/Im ail .google.com/mail/u/O/?ui=2& ik=cc23 932678&jsve1=qld ... 

Paul Pickett <paulpickett@conservewa.net> 

------·-··�·-···-·---------------- 
MOU with WSU Energy 053118 

------------·�-.·-------· .--- ··-------------- 
Richard TCD <rmlcd6@gmail.com> 
To: Paul Pickett <paulpickelt@conseNewa.net> 

I-Jello Paul, 

Thank you for sharing your thoughts. #2 

Wed,.Jun 6, 2018 at 10:36 PM 

1 of2 

According to my understand of the rules, by sending this e-mail to the TCD Board as you did, you just held and 
illegal TCD Board of Supervisor meeting. There was no public notlce or any of the notifications that I am aware of 
that are suppose to be given. 

Of course, you are welcome to seek legal advise on this if you feel this is in error. 

Thank you 
Richard Mankamyer 
TCD Board, Auditor 

On Mon, Jun 4, 2018 at 9:55 PM, Paul Pickett <paulpickelt@conservewa.net> wrote: 
; Richard, 

I wanted to provide some feedback on this letter. 

I understand your desire for good information. l share that desire and an interest In learning more on lhe 
• subjE.'lct of MO Us and other Partner agreements. The binder you suggest sounds like a good tool to help. 

However, I'm concerned about the way you pre�mt your request In the email. There are several points I'd like 
to share: 

1. Although you say "please", the email has a demanding tone and calls for several actions that could be 
significant workloads.In addition, the multiple cc's to WSCC staff and a local attorney can be interpreted as 
intimidation and seems excessive givon the small request. Within the current context of the Murnan Rights 
complaints, I hope we can be extra careful in communicating in ways that are respectful and collegial. A simple 
friendly request posed as a question would have suffiood r believe. · 

2. Having five supervisors who can all make requests creates a difficult situation for Sarah. I'd like us to discuss 
. protocols for requesting actions or information from Sarah between meetings. At the PUD we worked out a 

pretty reasonable approach, which for the CD might look like this: 
- Supervisors can make requests betwoon meetings of tho Executive Director {Interim or permanent). The ED 

; should feel safe to provide three possible responses: 1) no problem, not a big workload, can do; 2) wilt take 
some time - ok to get this to you al some future date; 3) signficant workload • would lil«:i the full Board to 

; prioritize this request against other work assignments. 
: If we are working together as a team, it should be easy to make polite requests and allow the ED to respond 
· and manage her workload. This would be an approach applied fairly by all Supervisors. 

I've asked for some time at the next Board meeting lo discuss this topic . 

. 3, In general. email creates some challenges in communication. We only read the words, and there is not voice 

. inflection or. body language, ft's easy to misunderstand the tone or intent of an email, and I've experienced 
, disagreements simply from this kind of misunderstanding. Emails are very good at sharing information but poor 
· at sharing feelings. It's a good idea to pick up the phone and talk in person if the subject could be 

6/25/201&, 8:3 I PM 



Washington State Conservation Network Mail • MOU with WSU Ener ... hHps;/Jm11il.googlc.com/mail/u.lO/?uf=2&ik·�cc2393?.678&j�vcr·(1id ... 

2 of2 

mlsunderstood. 
I'm probably violating my own suggestion by writing this email, but I wanted to share information to help our 
relationships. l'm not angry, and I'll add a smiley to prove it!:) I hope lhis simply leads to more discussion in 
person among the Board as a whole and some protocols we all agree with. It's one step to better relationships 
and robuildfng our team. 

Thank you for your kind consideration or my thoughts. 

Paul 

On Thu, May 31, 20"18 al 12:23 PM, Richard TCD <:rmtcd6@gmail.com> wrote: 
: Hello Sarah, 

. You mentioned at the board meeting on 052918 that the MOU with WSU Energy had sunsetled? 

Please explain how and why this happened and provide all relevant records concerning lhis assertion. I have 
· a copy of the original MOU and there is no expire date on it. 

Also, please have available a copy of all current and expired MOU's that TCD has.orqanized into a booklet, 
like our 3 ring Policy and Procedure booklets, for at least the past 3 years, including lo June 01, 20"18. 
available for the next time the board meets. 

Thank You for your attention in !his matter. 

Richard Mankamyer 
Teo Board, Auditor 

6/25/2018, 8:31 PM 






















































































































































































































































